
BOROUGH OF BARROW-IN-FURNESS

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Thursday, 5th March, 2020
   at 2.00 pm (Drawing Room)

A G E N D A
PART ONE

1.  Urgent Items

To note any items which the Chairman considers to be of an urgent 
nature. 

2.  Delegations

To receive notice from Members who may wish to move any 
delegated matter non-delegated and which will be decided by a 
majority of Members present and voting at the meeting.

3.  Admission of Public and Press

To consider whether the public and press should be excluded from 
the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the agenda.

4.  Declarations of Interest

To receive declarations by Members and/or co-optees of interests in 
respect of items on this Agenda. 

Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of 
Conduct, they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary 
interests or other registrable interests which have not already been 
declared in the Council’s Register of Interests.  (It is a criminal 
offence not to declare a disclosable pecuniary interest either in the 
Register or at the meeting).

Members may however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and 
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such 
disclosable pecuniary interests which they have already declared in 
the Register,  as well as any other registrable or other interests.  

5.  Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members.  



6.  Confirmation of Minutes

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 23rd January, 2020

3 - 6

FOR DECISION 

(D) 7.  Application for a Street Collection Permit 
 

7 - 16

(D) 8.  Delegated Decisions - January 2020 
 

17 - 20

NOTE (D) – Delegated
(R) – For Referral to Council

Membership of Committee

Councillors Assouad
Barlow
Biggins
Callister (Chairman)
Gawne
Hall
Maddox
McEwan
Mcleavy
Seward (Vice-Chair)
Wall

For queries regarding this agenda, please contact:
Sharron Rushton
Democratic Services Officer
01229 876321
srushton@barrowbc.gov.uk

Published: Wednesday, 26th February 2020



LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Meeting: Wednesday 23rd January, 2020
at 2.00 pm. (Drawing Room)

PRESENT:- Councillors Seward (Vice-Chairman), Assouad, Barlow, Biggins, Gawne, 
Hall, McEwan, McLeavy and Maddox.

Officers Present:- Ivor Churcher (Commercial Team Leader), Katherine Benson 
(Licensing Officer), Jane Holden (Principal Legal Officer) and Sharron Rushton 
(Democratic Services Officer).

Legal Representative:- Paul O’Donnell (Local Authority Retained Solicitor).

Cumbria Zoo Co Ltd (for Agenda Item 7 only)

Stewart Lambert (Chair, Board of Directors), Kim Banks (Deputy Animal Department 
Manager) and another representative.

31 – Minute’s Silence

The Chairman requested Members to stand and observe a minute’s silence as a mark 
of respect for Councillor Rory McClure, former Mayor and Member of the Licensing 
and Licensing Regulatory Committees, who had passed away suddenly.

32 – The Local Government Act 1972 as amended by the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985 and Access to Information (Variation) 
Order 2006

Discussion arising hereon it was

RESOLVED:- That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the 
public and press be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
Paragraphs 1 and 2 (Minute No. 38) of Part One of Schedule 12A of the said Act.

33 – Declarations of Interest

Councillor Biggins declared an interest in Agenda Item 9 - Application for a Private 
Hire and Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence (Minute No. 38) as the applicant was 
vaguely known to him.

Councillor Hall declared an interest in Agenda Item 9 - Application for a Private Hire 
and Hackney Carriage Driver’s Licence (Minute No. 38) as the applicant was known 
to him from many years ago.

34 – Apologies for Absence/Attendance of Substitute Members

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Callister (Chairman) and Wall.

Page 3

Agenda Item 6



35 – Minutes

The Minutes of the meeting held on 7th November, 2019 and the special meeting held 
on 18th December, 2019 were taken as read and confirmed.

36 – Cumbria Zoo Co Ltd Special Inspection Update

The Commercial Team Leader reported that on 5th September, 2019 the Licensing 
Regulatory Committee requested that the Commercial Team Leader and Dr Matthew 
Brash, the Councils Professional Veterinary Advisor, to carry out a Special Inspection 
within eight weeks, to ensure that adequate record keeping had been implemented at 
the Zoo. 

Issues relating to record keeping had been highlighted in Dr Brash’s report of 17th 
May, 2019 which was considered at the Licensing Regulatory Committee meeting on 
5th September, 2019. 

It was a condition of licence that the operator of the Zoo kept up-to-date records of the 
animals, including numbers of different animals, acquisitions, births, death, disposals 
and escapes, causes of deaths and the health of the animals.

In addition, Dr Brash was not satisfied that adequate ventilation was being provided 
within a number of areas where animals were being kept.

It was a condition of licence that the Zoo operator accommodated and kept the animals 
in a manner consistent with the standards set out in the Secretary of State’s Standards 
of Zoo Practice.

On 5th September, 2019 the Licensing Regulatory Committee requested that the Zoo 
operator provided a letter from their collection vet within 3 weeks to confirm the 
ventilation in the four areas, namely the Meat Kitchen, Tambopata, Giraffe House and 
Veterinary Hospital was suitable for animals throughout the whole of the year.

On 23rd September, 2019 the Council received a letter from Karen Archer BVSc BSc 
(Hons) Cert AVP (ZM) MRCVS RCVS Advanced Practitioner in Zoological Medicine 
advising that she had no concerns over ventilation.  The letter was attached as an 
appendix to the report for information.

On 22nd November, 2019 a Special Inspection was conducted by Dr Matthew Brash 
and the Commercial Team Leader.

Findings at November 2019:

1. A new daily diary system had been instigated, with a single sheet/day/section. This 
included a number of different headings on each sheet for the keepers to 
complete, thus prompting greater detail to be kept. These were reasonably 
complete, with some sections putting in more detail than others.

2. The back payments to Species360 had been made, and full access to the ZIMS 
had been granted.

Page 4

Agenda Item 6



3. A part time Zoo Secretary had been employed, working 24 hours/week, over four 
days. Her role was solely to ensure that the data was all collated and then 
transferred onto ZIMS. 

4. Considerable efforts had been made to input the backlog of data from the last 
year, and the Zoo was to be commended for this effort. Whilst most of the data 
had been inputted, there were still some gaps. For example, where animals did 
not have an individual identity, such as many of the water fowl, squirrels or 
meerkats, their data had not all been entered. Similarly not all the veterinary data 
had been entered to date. It was important that all relevant data for all animals 
within the collection was maintained.

The report concluded that the Zoo were commended for the effort that they had put in 
over the last four months, inputting all the back log of data. They were encouraged to 
ensure that all animals that could be easily identified were, e.g. by microchip or leg 
band, enabling individual records to be maintained.

In Dr Brash’s opinion the Zoo were now complying with the requirements of 9.1 and 
9.3 of SSSMZP.

The full report was attached as an appendix for information.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Barlow to note the 
content of the report and acknowledge the progress being made at South Lakes Safari 
Zoo.

RESOLVED:- To note the content of the report and acknowledge the progress being 
made at South Lakes Safari Zoo.

37 – Licensing Delegated Decisions (October – December 2019)

The Commercial Team Leader reported that at its meeting on 5th September, 2019 
Members had requested a monthly report of the Public Protection Manager’s 
delegated decisions made under Part 3(2), Section I of the Constitution, Scheme of 
Delegations to Officers with regard to the Councils Licensing functions.

A summary of the delegated decisions made between 4th October, 2019 and 31st 
December, 2019 including those already reviewed by the Interim Assistant Director 
(Regeneration and Built Environment), the Temporary Senior Legal Officer and the 
Chair of the Licensing Regulatory Committee was summarised in the report.

It was moved by Councillor McEwan and seconded by Councillor Barlow to note the 
report.

RESOLVED:- To note the report.

Page 5

Agenda Item 6



38 – Application for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence

The Licensing Officer reported on information which had been received regarding an 
application for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s Licence.  She set out 
details concerning the applicant and the Committee’s policy regarding such matters.  
The applicant and a representative attended the meeting and addressed the 
Committee.

RESOLVED:- That the application for a Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Driver’s 
Licence be granted.

The meeting closed at 2.55 pm.

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



  Part 1

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 5th March 2020

Reporting Officer:    Senior Licensing Officer

(D)

Title: Application for a Street Collection Permit

Summary and Conclusions: An application has been made to the Licensing 
Authority for a street collection permit on behalf of Barrow and District’s 
Society for the Blind. They have requested a street collection permit for a 
collection which will take place on Sunday 24th May 2020, between 10am and 
3pm.

Current policy only allows for Street Collections to take place on Friday’s and 
Saturday’s, no mid-week collections are allowed.

The application therefore requires Members to exercise their powers to hear 
applications to vary any limitation or term imposed on a consent, licence or 
permission, in accordance with Minute No. 1.3 (ii) of the current allocation 
Policy for street collections/flag days.

Recommendations: Members are required to determine whether the 
application for a permit should be granted or refused, based on the 
information in this report and as presented at the hearing. 

1. The Application

On 12th December 2019 an application was made to the Licensing Authority 
for a Street Collection permit on Sunday 24th May 2020, by Thian Brodie on 
behalf of Barrow and District’s Society for the Blind (attached at Appendix 1). 
The collection is intended to take place on Dalton Road, Barrow in Furness, 
on the same day as the Soapbox Challenge 
https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/. 

The application was made in accordance with the Council’s Street Collection 
Regulations and within the required timescale of 1 month before the proposed 
date of collection (Appendix 2).  

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7

https://www.visitbarrow.org.uk/soapbox/


2. Background

The Police, Factories and (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1916 allows local 
authorities to make regulations regarding the collection of money or selling of 
articles for the benefit of ‘charitable or other purposes’ in a street or public 
place.

The current allocation policy for street collections / flag days was determined 
by Minute No. 150 (1990/91) and Minute No. 80 (1993/94) of the Licensing 
Sub-Committee as follows:-

a) That it be adopted as policy that once a particular date had been 
allocated to a charity, no further application from other charities for 
the same date would be permitted;

b) No organisation would be granted more than one collection date in 
each calendar year;

c) That preference would continue to be given to charities that use 
money collected locally;

d) That no more than 50 street collection permits will be granted in a 
calendar year, such permits to be for collection days either on 
Fridays or Saturdays. No mid-week collections to be allowed;

e) Organisations must comply with the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness 
Street Collection Regulations and submit a statement of accounts 
following their street collection in order for similar applications to be 
considered in future years; and

f) Minute No. 1.3 (ii) resolves to vary current general allocation policy 
to enable the Sub-Committee and/or the Panel to receive 
applications for additional collections in cases of special 
celebrations relevant to individual charities from time to time.

This is Barrow and District’s Society for the Blind’s first application for a 
permit this calendar year. To date there are only 2 other street collection 
permits, allocated from a maximum of 50, for 2020.

3. Street Collection Regulations

The Borough of Barrow-in-Furness Street Collection Regulations are 
attached at Appendix 2. All applicants are provided with a copy of the 
regulations and are expected to abide by them at all times during any 
collection. This report also asks Members to consider the following 
Regulations when determining these applications:

5. The licensing authority may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to 
such streets or public places or such parts thereof as it thinks fit.

10. While collecting:

a) A collector shall remain stationary; and

Page 8

Agenda Item 7



b) A collector or two collectors together shall not be nearer to other 
collector than 25 metres.

4. Representations

The applicant has been invited to attend today’s Licensing Regulatory 
Committee.

Cumbria Police have also confirmed they have no objections, in relation to 
the applicant.

5. Options 

The options available to members are;

a) To grant the Street Collection Permit for Sunday, 24th May 2020 with or 
without conditions / restrictions specified by the Committee in 
accordance with the Street Collection Regulations, and to give the 
Public Protection Manager delegated authority to grant any additional 
street collection permits for this day only;

b) To grant the Street Collection Permit for Sunday, 24th May 2020 with or 
without conditions / restrictions specified by the Committee in 
accordance with the Street Collection Regulations;

c) To refuse to grant the Street Collection Permit.

6. Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

A street collection permit is required by any person to collect, in a street or 
public place within the Borough, money for the benefit of charitable or other 
purposes.  

The Council’s Street Collection Regulations (“the Council’s Regulations”) 
made under powers contained in The Police, Factories, (Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1916 regulate such collections.  Any person who collects 
money or otherwise acts in contravention of the Council’s Regulations with 
regard to street collection is liable to a fine not exceeding level 1 on the 
standard scale.

There is no statutory right of appeal against the refusal of a street collection 
permit but a licensing authority’s decision could be challenged by application 
to the High Court for a review of the decision (Judicial Review).

(ii) Risk Assessment

Page 9

Agenda Item 7



The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(iii) Financial Implications

The recommendation has no financial implications.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no, minor or significant implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing 
any of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has little impact on the Health and Wellbeing of users of 
this service.

Background Papers

Nil

Report Author
Katherine Benson. Senior Licensing Officer

Page 10

Agenda Item 7



Page 11

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



Page 12

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 1



STREET COLLECTION REGULATIONS 

 
1. In these Regulations, unless the context otherwise requires, “collection”  

means a collection of money or a sale of articles for the benefit of charitable or other 
purposes and the word  
 
“collector” shall be construed accordingly; 
 
“promoter” means a person who causes others to act as collectors; 
 
“the licensing authority” means the Council of the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness; 
 
“permit” means  permit for collection; 
 
“Contributor” means a person who contributes a collection and includes a purchaser of 
articles for sale for the benefit of charitable or other purposes; 
 
“collecting box” means a box or other receptacle for the reception of money from 
contributors. 

 
2. No collection other than a collection taken at a meeting in the open air, shall be made in 

any street or public place within the Borough of Barrow-in-Furness, unless a promoter 
shall have obtained from the licensing authority a permit. 

 
3. Application for a permit shall be made in writing not later than one month before the date 

on which it is proposed to make the collection; provided that the licensing authority may 
reduce the period of one month if satisfied that there are special reasons for so doing. 

 
4. No collection shall be made except upon the day and between the hours stated in the 

permit; 
 
5. The licensing authority may, in granting a permit, limit the collection to such streets or 

public places or such parts thereof as it thinks fit; 
 
6  (i) No person shall assist or take part in any collection without the written authority of 

a promoter.  
 

(ii) Any person authorised under paragraph (i) above shall produce such written 
authority forthwith for inspection on being requested to do so by a duly authorised 
officer of the licensing authority or any constable. 

 
7. No collection shall be made in any part of the carriageway of any street which has a 

footway; provided that the licensing authority may, if it thinks fit, allow a collection to take 
place on the said carriageway where such collection has been authorised to be held in 
connection with a procession. 

 
8. No collection shall be made in a manner likely to inconvenience or annoy any person. 
 
9. No collection shall importune any person to the annoyance of such person. 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



10. While collecting: 
 

a) A collector shall remain stationary; and 
b) A collector or two collectors together shall not be nearer to other collector than  

25 metres. 
 

Provided that the licensing authority may, if it thinks fit, waive the requirements of this 
Regulation in respect of a collection which has been authorised to be held in connection 
with a procession. 

 
11. No promoter collector or person who is otherwise connected with a collection shall permit 

a person under the age of sixteen years to act as collector. 
 
12. (1) Every collector shall carry a collecting box. 
  

(2) All collecting boxes shall be numbered consecutively and shall  
be securely closed and sealed in such a way as to prevent them being opened 
without the seal being broken. 

 
(3) All money received by a collector from contributors shall immediately be placed in 

a collecting box. 
 
(4) Every collector shall deliver, unopened, all collecting boxes in his possession to a 

promoter. 
 
13. A collector shall not carry or use any collecting box, receptable or tray which does not 

bear displayed prominently thereon the name of the charity or fund which is to benefit, 
nor any collecting box which is not duly numbered. 

14.     (1) Subject to paragraph (2) below a collecting box shall be opened in the presence    
of a promoter and another responsible person. 

(2) Where a collecting box is delivered, unopened, to a bank it may be opened by an 
official of the bank. 

(3) As soon as a collecting box has been opened, the person opening it shall count 
the contents and shall enter the amount with the number of the collecting box on a 
list which shall be certified by that person. 

15. (1) No payment shall be made to any collector. 

(2) No payment shall be made out of the proceeds of a collection, either directly or 
indirectly, to any person connected with the promotion or conduct of such 
collection for, or in respect of, services connected therewith, except such 
payments as may have been approved by licensing authority. 

16.     (1) Within one month after the date of any collection the person to whom a permit has 
been granted shall forward to the licensing authority:- 

(a) a statement in the form set out in the Schedule to these Regulations, or in 
a form to the like effect, showing the amount received and the expenses 
and payments incurred in connection with such collection, and certified by 
that person and a qualified accountant; 

(b) a list of the collectors; 

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



(c) a list of the amounts contained in each collecting box; 

 and shall, if required by the licensing authority, satisfy it as to the proper application of 
 the proceeds of the collection. 

(2) The said person shall also, within the same period, at the expense of that person 
and after a qualified accountant has given his certificate under paragraph (1)(a) 
above, publish in such newspaper or newspapers as the licensing authority may 
direct a statement showing the name of the person to whom the permit has been 
granted, the area to which the permit relates, the name of the charity or fund to 
benefit, the date of the collection, the amount collected, and the amount of the 
expenses and payments incurred in connection with such collection. 

(3) The licensing authority may, if satisfied there are special reasons for doing so, 
extend the period of one month referred to in paragraph (1) above. 

(4) For the purposes of this Regulation “a qualified accountant” means a member of 
one or more of the following bodies:- 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales; 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Scotland; 

The Association of Certified Accountants; 

The Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland. 

17. These regulations shall not apply:- 

(a) in respect of a collection taken at a meeting in the open air; or 

(b) to the selling of articles in any street or public place when the articles are sold in 
the ordinary course of trade. 

18. Any person who acts in contravention of any of the foregoing regulations shall be liable 
on summary conviction to a fine not exceeding £2.00 or in the case of a second or 
subsequent offence not exceeding £5.00. 

 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
Appendix 2



This page is intentionally left blank



  Part 1

LICENSING REGULATORY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 5th March 2020

Reporting Officer:  Public Protection Manager    

(D)

Title: Licensing Delegated Decisions (January 2020)

Summary and Conclusions: 

This report summarises the decisions made under Part 3(2), Section I of the 
Constitution, Scheme of Delegations to Officers with regard to the Councils 
Licensing functions.

Recommendations: 

That members consider the summary of decisions.

Report

At its meeting of the 5th September 2019, Members requested a monthly 
report of the Public Protection Managers delegated decisions.

Below is a summary of the delegated decisions made between 1st January 
2020 and 31st January 2020 and include those already reviewed by the 
Interim Assistant Director (Regeneration and Built Environment), Principal 
Legal Officer and the Chair of Licensing Regulatory Committee. 

Private Hire Operators Licence 1

Home Boarding Licence (Renewed) 1

Providing Boarding in Catteries for Cats (Renewed) 1

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Drivers Licences
(Granted / Renewed): 30

Suspended (DBS Expired) 1
Suspended (Medical) 1
Suspended  (Licence Expired) 5
Revoked 1
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Vehicle Licences (Granted / 
Renewed inc’ Change of Vehicles and Transfers): 37

Suspended (Missed Vehicle Test): 22
Suspended (Licence Expired): 2

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



House to House / Pub to Pub Collections & Street Collections Permits 
(Granted): 4

Registered Lottery (Granted): 18
Scrap Metal Site Licence (Granted) 1

Scrap Metal Collectors Licence (Granted) 1

Personal Licence (Alcohol) (Granted): 1
Temporary Event Notices (Licensing Act 2003) (Acknowledged): 2

Considerations

(i) Legal Implications

There is a need to ensure that the policies and procedures for determining 
licences are consistent and fair to avoid legal challenge. The decision must be 
taken in the interests of public safety and should be fair, reasonable, 
proportionate and in accordance with human rights and natural justice 
principles.

In particular, Sections 51(1) and 59(1) of the Local Government (Misc. 
Provisions) Act 1976 provides that the Council must assess whether 
individuals’ are suitable persons to hold a drivers’ licence be it hackney 
carriage or private hire.  

(ii) Risk Assessment

If the Council does not fulfil its licensing duties, it may be exposed to legal 
challenges.

(iii) Financial Implications

If a successful legal challenge is made against the Council, costs and  
compensation might be payable.

(iv) Health and Safety Implications

The recommendation has no implications.

(v) Equality and Diversity

The recommendation has no detrimental impact on service users showing any 
of the protected characteristics under current Equalities legislation.

(vi) Health and Well-being Implications

The recommendation has no adverse effect on the Health and Wellbeing of 
users of this service.

Page 18

Agenda Item 8



Background Papers

Report Author: Graham Barker (Public Protection Manager)

Page 19

Agenda Item 8



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Confirmation of Minutes
	7 Application for a Street Collection Permit
	SCP Appendix 1
	SCP Appendix 2
	STREET COLLECTION REGULATIONS


	8 Delegated Decisions - January 2020



